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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors’ report of the
charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both a
trustees' report, and a directors' report and strategic report under company law.

The trust operates five primary academies for pupils aged 3 ~ 11, in Doncaster. The academies have a
combined pupil roll of 1544 as at October 23 census.

Structure, governance and management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and is an exempt charity. The charitable company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The
company registration number is 10668193 .

The governors act as the trustees for the charitable activities of Empowering Minds Academy Trust and are also
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company is known as
the Empowering Minds Academy Trust (EMAT).

Details of the trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a
member.

Trustees’ indemnities

The academy trust through its Articles has indemnified its Trustees to the fullest extent permissible by law.
During the period the Academy also purchased and maintained liability insurance for its Trustees.

A Trustee may benefit from indemnity insurance purchased at the MAT's expense to cover the liability of the
Trustees which by virtue of any rule of faw would otherwise attach to them in respect of negligence, default or
breach of trust or duty of which they may be guiity in relation to the academy trust.

The Trust have opted into the DFE RPA (Risk Protection Arrangement) scheme for cover. The Trust reserves
the right to arrange investigation, defence, adjustment, settlement or appeal of any claim or criminal prosecution
against any Trustee/Governor.

For the representation of any Trustee/Governor at any official examination, enquiry, investigation or other
proceedings ordered or commissioned at the behest of a legally empowered official body to investigate the
activities of the Trustee/Governor.

There were no third party indemnity provisions during the year or at the date of approval of the Trustee Report.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

Each time the Trust seeks to appoint new Trustees, the Trust will carefully consider the recruitment process and
undertake a skills audit to align specialist expertise and knowledge to the existing body and future Trust
priorities. All recruitment will be carried out as per the EMAT Articles of Association.

It is expected that the Board consist of a broad range of skills to include; leadership/policy, education,
performance/curricutum, human resources, estates/property, safeguarding, health and safety, governance,
finance/audit/risk, external relations and partnerships/marketing.

The Board will carry out a skills audit annually and review the skills needed for future recruitment.

Recruitment will be carried out by initially identifying the required skills appropriate to the Board at the point of
recruitment. The MAT executive team will receive candidates' informal CVs and a decision will be made as to
the suitability against the criteria set. Once potential candidates identified, an interview will be arranged with the
CEOQ, Chair of the Board and nominated Trustees. Final ratification of a potential appointment will be by
Members/full Board. Once approved, the appointed candidates can progress with the EMAT induction process.

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will be the standard EMA induction and any additional
requirements depending on previous experience. Where necessary, induction will provide training on charity and
educational, legal and financial matters and roles and responsibilities. EMAT currently purchase NGA adviser for
training and induction. All new Trustees will meet with the Chief Executive Officer and Chair of Trustees prior to
their first formal meeting. In addition, new Trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes,
accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. All
Trustees/Governors undertake a skills audit annually to determine training requirements at Academy Committee
level and Trust level. Governance reviews will also identify further necessary training. Induction will fulfil policy
requirements and will also be tailored specifically to the individual. New Trustees may be 'buddied’ with more
experienced Trustees to provide support and advice as appropriate.

The Trust has committed to developing training opportunities for Trustees/Governors based on their particular
needs and the changing educational landscape. Training will be arranged by the Chair Trustee.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Organisational structure

The Governance/Leadership and Management structure consists of five levels; the Members, the Board of
Trustees and sub-committees to include the individual Academy Committees, the Executive Leadership Team
and the respective Academy Senior Leadership Teams. The aim of this structure is accountability and challenge
and to devolve responsibility and encourage involvement in decision making at all fevels.

The Trustees are responsible for shaping general policy, have strategic oversight, monitoring performance and
MAT development plans, are responsible for setting an annual budget plan aligned to the agreed Trust priorities,
monitoring the Trust by use of results and budgets and making major decisions about the revenue, grant and
capital expenditure and senior staff appointments as identified in the EMAT Scheme of Delegation. Trustees
also make decisions about the direction of the MAT to include curriculum, the children’s achievement and
welfare.

The sub-committees act as advisory bodies to the EMAT Board. Certain responsibilities are delegated to this
body as detailed in the EMAT Scheme of Delegation. Academy Committees work with Headteachers to monitor
attainment, safeguarding and community cohesion individual academy level and report to Trustees.

Decision making responsibilities are detailed within the EMAT Scheme of Delegation and the Financial Scheme.
These documents detail the duties for each level of governance and leadership. The aim of this is to enable the
correct division of duties and accountability and oversight for the approval process.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is the Accounting Officer, by defauit, responsible for accountability and
governance. The CEO is responsible for driving school improvement across the MAT, formulating strategic
vision, policies and targets to achieve the Trust’s vision and objectives.

The Senior Leadership Team comprises the Chief Executive Officer (CEO, who is the MAT Accounting Officer),
Deputy CEO, academy Head Teachers and the Chief Operating/ Finance Officer (COQ/CFO). The team is
responsible for delivering the agreed development plans within their own areas to ensure targets are met in all
areas. ’

Key documents to support the Governance of the MAT are the Schemes of Delegation as detailed above, the
EMAT Governance Handbook which details Trustee and Academy Committee Terms of Reference. The MAT
also provide copies of key DFE documents, for example the Governance Handbook, Academy Trust Handbook.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Arrangements for sgtting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personnel identified within the Trust include the CEO, Deputy CEO, COO/CFO and
individual academy Head Teachers and SLT. Designated responsibilities are detailed in the EMAT Schemes of
Delegation along with the appropriate approval levels.

Trustees will determine the pay ranges for the key positions taking account the correct conditions of service,
Government guidance, level of responsibility, size of school using total unit score, context and complexity of the
role, all available benchmarking information and the latest picture with regards competitive recruitment. External
HR advice will also be sought.

Key management personnel have annual performance management. The foundations of these reviéws are used
as a foundation for remuneration proposals which are then agreed by Trustees (where applicable). External HR
advice is purchased to support this process.

The MAT CEO, Deputy COE and COO/CFOQO's pay is reviewed annually and any progression is subject to
performance and must be within the pay range aiready set and agreed by Trustees.

Trustees are volunteers, therefore, no remuneration of any kind has been paid to Trustees/Members or
Governors.

Page 6




Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Trade union facility time

There were no employees who were relevant union officials during the period under review. The Academy Trust
buys into the trade union facility time agreement from the local authority.

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations
The Trust continues to work with schools and academies who are not connected to the corporation. This

includes work with the LA upon request, to support specific schools. The MAT plans collaborative learning
opportunities for all the staff, children in the learning community.

The Trust works continually to provide a range of personalised professional learning and development for
teachers, leaders and govemance. Key staff work with other MATs and organisations to train other staff within

the borough.

The five academies have school fund in separate accounts and administration of these funds are by designated
school office staff. School Funds are audited externally and reported on.

Staff and all governance must complete annual formal declarations which are checked by the responsible officer
and the register updated. All related parties will be presented to Trustees.

Engagement with employees (including disabled persons)

Empowering Minds Academy Trust policy is fully committed to treating all employees and job applicants equally.
Communication and well informed workforce are a key objective, especially regarding decision making, to obtain
employee views and opinions. We seek to encourage a team approach and awareness to achieving the MAT's
vision.

All selection and recruitment decisions, both internal and external, and the progression of employees within the
company are based on merit and not on any consideration of race, religion, disability, nationality, ethnic origin,
gender, sexual orientation, age, part-time hours or marital status.

Disability - the recruitment, professional development and training for disabled employees are reviewed to
ensure they comply with legal requirements. There is disabled access to EMAT premises and disabled facilities.

All applicants for vacancies are considered on merit. Where necessary, special arrangements are made for
interviewing disabled applicants. The Trust makes reasonable adjustments for disabled employees and for staff
who return to work after lengthy absence.

Engagement has been achieved by a number of methods as part of the EMAT engagement strategy: -
Employee meetings scheduled throughout the year open up conversations around support, concerns,
communications, training, decision making processes. Aim to ensure well informed and skilled staff with

particular attention to health and wellbeing and a transparent process for decisions and communication to help
staff feel considered and valued. To listen to employee views on matters that are likely to affect their interests.

Scheduled staff appraisal and training programs to encourage employee involvement in the company as a whole
for both individual and team approach.

Raising awareness around MAT vision and ethos promoting teamwork and support for each other, this support
to include focus on health for example, promoting support for staff with medical conditions or disability.

Regular communications.

Staff involvement in peer to peer support and training to increase confidence and skills.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Objectives and activities

Objects and aims

In accordance with the Articles of Association Empowering Minds Academy Trust have adopted a Funding
Agreement approved by the Secretary of State for Education. This agreement specifies that the MAT has a
curriculum satisfying the requirements of the Education Act (balanced and broadly based curriculum). The MAT
is a charitable company whose aim is to provide quality education for early years and primary school children.

There is no relationship that impacts on any operations of EMAT or on any of its policies or governance.

The Articles of Association state that the charitable compliant has adopted a Scheme of Government which has
been approved by the Secretary of State for Education, this scheme sets out the basis for pupil admissions and
the requirements for the curriculum,

An object and activity of the Company is to develop education within and beyond the MAT. This will be achieved
by establishing, maintaining and developing its academies, offering a broad and balanced curriculum, whilst
placing a strong emphasis on preparing children for their next stage of learning. In setting our objectives and
planning our activities the Trustees have given careful consideration to the Charity Commission's general
guidance on public benefit.

EMAT Vision and Ethos

Empowering Minds Trust is a growing child-centred Multi Academy Trust where challenge, collaboration,
inclusivity and support is at the heart of our sthos. We intend to develop the children we teach to be
independent, strong, empowered individuals who fully understand their place in the world.

We seek to be a family of schools where every child/young person receives the best possible education through
the sharing of best practice and world class professional development opportunities for staff.

We have the highest of expectations, promoting excellence and personal achievement. We believe that children
should be at the centre of everything we do and receive the best possible education.

All schogls in the partnership will be working towards outstanding status. We believe in system leadership and
that all schools are more effective when they work in partnership than when they stand alone.

We value and embrace each school's uniqueness and the community it serves, whilst seeking to learn from and
share with each other so that we spread excellence effectively.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Objectives, strategies and activities
The strategic intent for the EMAT and each academy within the Trust is as follows:

« To secure excellence for all pupils with the academies meeting and exceeding core expectations.

« To promote strong leadership and build capacity to improve.

» To work collaboratively to share school to school development and good practice across the Trust.

+ To set and implement good foundations for the business side of the MAT to ensure safety, sustainability and

best vaiue.
These processes are underpinned by policy.

To achieve this ambition the Trust is ‘committed to the following values which go together with the strategies
above:-

« We aim to provide strong, ambitious and inspirational leadership in every school so that every pupil and every
member of staff is encouraged to achieve more than they thought possible.

» We aim to set challenging targets for ail our schoois and to use key data sets to drive progress.

» We aim to use the most effective new technologies to drive attainment and progress.

+ We aim to offer the very best CPD in all aspects.

« We aim to develop a co-operative and collaborative ethos across ali our schools so that best practice is shared
in the best interests of all pupils and all staff.

+ We aim to deliver all of the above within a predetermined budget, which is audited and gives best value for

money.

Public benefit

In exercising its powers and duties the Trust has complied with its duty to have due regard to the Charity
Commissions' guidance on Public Benefit. The main public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision of a
high quality education to its pupils. The Trust will continue to provide education to the children that is balanced
and broadly based so that it provides moral, cuiturai, mental and physical development for all pupils. This has
been evidenced through the results achieved and feedback from external assessments.

In order to benefit the wider community, the Trust supports other schools and multi academy trusts to share
knowledge and guidance and wilf continue to do so.

Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to public benefit as per the Charity Commission's
general guidance and as included in SORP. Trustees look to ensuring the MAT set its objective and future plans
with the guidance in mind. ‘
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Achievements and performance
Attainment summary below

Early Years % GLD All ELGs

EYFSP 72% ' 71%

Phonics %WA Score

Year 1 _ 82% 33

Year 2 re-sit 76% 32.1

By end of Y2 93% -

KeyStage 1 % EXS+ %GDS -

Reading 75% 22%

Writing 67% 7%

Maths 75% 21%
RW&M 64% 4%

Key Stage 2 Exo+/EXS+ High/GDS Progress
Reading 80% 25% +0.6
Writing 78% 16% +1.1
Maths 80% 22% +1.0
RW&M 68% 8% -
Quality of education ;

Secure a trajectory of rising attainment and progress across subjects and key stages through:

« implementation of models of effective curriculum

« developing strong subject leadership

+ shared understanding of the thematic focus on metacognition

To ensure high quality remote learning continues to develop to meet the needs of children and families.

Leadership - including governance and safeguarding

Undertake further succession planning in order to create additional capacity in central leadership across all
functions including business management and the quality of education

Secure positive outcomes for all schools in the inspection window by ensuring that overall effectiveness

judgements are good or better. Further embed and enhance the skills of MAT governance. Academy Committee
members to have a deep, accurate understanding of each school's effectiveness and to feedback to Trustees

and senior leaders.
To grow the Trust further by at least one school

To strengthen the Trust Board by recruiting further effective Trustees.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Key financial performance indicators

2023 2022
Fund balance (excluding fixed assets and pension) (£) 1,508,088 1,113,110
Cash in bank (£) 2,178,364 1,506,556
Total staff costs (£) 6,846,174 7,270,562
Staff costs as proportion of total expense (%) 73.40 75.19
Total pupil numbers 1,544 1,549
Spend per pupil for non-pay expenditure lines excluding depreciation (£) 1,292 1,269
MAT budget outturns are as per MAT policy i.e., surplus minimum of 3% Met.
Financial controls met to ensure financial probity Met
Cash flow monitored and within recommended parameter to ensure Met
Financial forecasts updated monthly Mel
Financial risks considered on a planned schedule Met

Key non-financial performance indicators

Rigorous school improvement strategies embedded. Detailed account within the School Improvement Strategy
Document.

Work on succession planning for senior staff has been successful and will continue to be embedded for this next
year.

Full governance review and restructure completed and implemented to include new documents such as
Schemes of Delegation, Terms of Reference for Trustees and Sub-Committees. The changes have and will
further streamline processes and enhance division of duties. The formation of Academy Committees has
supported the individual academies and link Trustees have enhanced communications. Future focus on
Governance will be self-evaluation training, inductions, skill set, recruitment and further work on key documents
and reporting. EMAT purchase NGA external advice and support.

Development of ICT infrastructure to enhance the MAT's fully consolidated approach and to also seek
government funding for connect the classroom to include MIS systems.

Assessment and reporting software consolidated for efficient data management across the MAT. -
Growth of by at least one school in the next academic year.
Further Trust central team structure changes made for increased efficiencies.

Succession planning for leadership at all levels has been a feature of performance management and is now in
place. This ensures future sustainability and minimises risk and meets and prepares for current growth plans.

Collaborative networks across the MAT implemented e.g.. early years, SEND, leadership, moderation, English
and Maths, middle and subject leaders network including leadership development with external school
improvement support.

CIF buildings funding secured for significant improvements for high priority areas.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Going concern

The Board of Trustees have made the appropriate enquires and have a reasonable expectation that the MAT
has the ability to continue a going concern and has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for
the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements. Further details on the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of
Accounting Policies.

The academies are meeting their required targets, Leadership is strong and expertise across the MAT is
growing.

In the interests of the children, staff and all concerned, the financial position of the Trust is priority. The EMAT
Finance Policy details the essential monitoring procedures, controls and expectations to ensure financial
security. There is a rigorous monthly process of budget monitoring, three year forecasting and cash flow checks
to ensure accuracy and sustainability. Monthly updates are provided to senior leaders and changes reported to
trustees. The Trust develops a three year financial plan which is submitted to the Trustees. The MAT plan will
ensure that current and future years are sustainable and within the required threshold set in MAT policy. The
plan wilt include school development plans and potential financial challenges. Central reserves are within policy
also and are reviewed by Trustees. Trustees will monitor and review all of the above.

Any significant decisions that impact on the future of the MAT are carefully considered and discussed taking in to
account possible consequence of all relevant factors on the MAT's stakeholders.

The Trust will implement and manage systems and controis for finance, health and safety, pay and HR, building,
ICT, risk and contracts to ensure legal compliance. 23/24 will include a full external review of building

compliance and management of.

For this reason, the Trust continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Financial review

The Trust, has been established since date of incorporation 1 June 2017 and has been able to ensure that the
end of year outturns have been within the required threshold set by MAT policy to ensure {(minimum 3% surplus
outturn, maximum 7%) that the MAT is in a safe financial position and is financially viabie for the foreseeable
future. In 2020 the MAT grew by the addition of one school, Hawthorn Primary joined the MAT on the 1st April
2020. The MAT still is in a period of growth in order to meet its growth plan. All factors are key to the MAT being
a going concern. Cash flow and budgets are on track and are continuously monitored to ensure stability.

The majority of the Trust's income is obtained from the Educational Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of
the GAG (General Annual Grant) and recurrent grants, the use of which is restricted to the objectives of the
organisation. Additional income sources include Lacal Authority receipts for the high needs block and also early
year's provision. The total incoming resources for the MAT are identified within the financial statement. As the
majority of income is pupil number driven, funding forecasts are calculated for future years and
monitored/updated monthly. Details of the income amounts can be seen within the audited figures below.

It is important that expenditure is in line with income and the future financial plan to support the key aims of the
Trust, therefore, budget and financial forecasts follow the individual academy and MAT's development plans.
Budgets are then manitored throughout the year and adjusted to meet change. We continually look ahead and
strive for accurate predictions so that we can respond to any negative scenario in good time and make
necessary adjustments. Pension liability is budgeted for and included in forecasted figures.

The MAT has experienced significant financial consequence due to the current financial climate and steeply
rising cots/inflation. Government additional funding has been received but the Trust have had to take additional
action to make savings and to incorporate further savings within the business model for future years in order to
eliminate financial risk and support business continuity.

Financial risks are included within each Trustee agenda and are reviewed regularly to meet change. Current
risks identified are the uncertainty around further rises in inflation including employee costs. The rising costs
have been included in budget prediction scenarios and plans developed for this and future years.

Rigorous monitoring is inbuilt into and ongoing as part of the MATs procedures and detailed below. This way,
any risk is managed effectively.

Other current financial risk is the dip in pupil numbers in the locality. Again, pupil number monitoring and
forecasting is a monthly process in order to mitigate risk and ensure financial sustainability. Any forecasted fall in
pupil numbers and associated funding is calculated and expenditure adjusted to be in line with income. This
exercise has already taken place in 23/24 and will be monitored monthly. All relevant budgets have been
adjusted to ensure that surplus outturns are within the parameters set by EMAT policy.

The trust has a cash of £2,178,364 (2022: £1,506,556 at the bank, with total net assets {excluding the pension
liability) of £33,445,812 (2022: £33,169,493).

As at 31 August 2023 the level of free reserves held was £82,216 which shows a surplus of £36,949 on the
£45,267 total as at 31 August 2022. Restricted general funds (excluding pension) amounted to £1,425,872,
which shows a surplus of £358,029 on the £1,067,843, total as at 31 August 2022.

The surplus on restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus unrestricted funds was £394,978 for
the year ended 31 August 2023. The balance on restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus
unrestricted funds amounted to £1,508,088 (2022: £1,113,110) and the Trust has an overall balance of
£31,937,724 (2022: £32,056,383) on restricted fixed asset funds.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Financial and risk management objectives and policies

The Trust adopted as its principal financial policies the Academies Financial Handbook published by the DfE,
Academy Schools: guidance on regulation as Charities and Internal Controls for Charities published by the
Charites Commission together with the Trust's operational Financial Management and Administration
procedure.

The Board of Trustees assess the major risks to which the Trust is exposed and a formal review of the Trust's
risk management process is undertaken on an annual basis.

Reserves policy .

The Trustees review the required reserve levels of the Trust, annually. This review considers the nature of
income and expenditure streams, the need to match income commitments and the nature of reserves.

The Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of free reserves should be at least the equivalent to 3%
of each academy budget GAG Statement and the trust central budget. The reserves benchmark is reviewed
annually. Actual reserves for this financial year are detailed within the accounts below to include the restricted
and unrestricted funds. MAT policy does not allow deficits and afl reserves must meet the minimum 3%

threshold.

Trust reserves represent income to the MAT that does not have any planned spend of commitments and that
may be spent following consideration and agreement by Trustees to further the MAT's objectives. Prior to
deciding any spending, Trustees will consider the level of reserve to retain in order to support any unforeseen
emergency and cash flow for current and future years.

The Trust is addressing the pension reserves deficit via each academy contributing to the pension deficit by an
agreed 3 year payment plan. The plan also details the required employers’ percentage amount. This is
incorporated into current and future financial ptans and cash flow. Figures are included below.

We are working to minimise any financial impact on reserves as a consequence of rising inflation; by flexible
staffing, best value purchasing, monitoring of higher financial risk areas to foresee issues. Findings will be acted
upon and reported to Trustees.

Reserves Palicy is included within the MAT Finance Policy.

At 31 August 2023 the level of free reserves held was £82,216 which shows an increase of £36,949 on the 2022
total of £45,267.

The balance on restricted general funds (excluding pension reserve) plus the balance on unrestricted funds
amounted to £1,508,088 (2022: £1,113,110) and the Trust has an overall balance of £31,937,724 (2022:
£32,056,383) on restricted fixed asset funds.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Investment policy

The Trust's Investment Strategies are detailed within the MAT Finance Policy agreed by the Board. In essence
the strategy is:

The Board of Trustees will consider the investment of any cash balance surplus and safe keeping of the funds
on an annual basis. They will be guided by DFE regulations. The priority is to avoid high levels of risk by
ensuring any investment vehicle has adequate credit rating measured by Standard and Paor or another
reputable credit rating agency. The Trust will avoid volatile investment instruments, ensuring security takes
precedence over revenue generation.

The Trust will review investment of funds to ensure appropriate refiection of risk/reward at least an annual basis.

Any investment must further support the trusts charitable aims as per the Articles of Association. There are no
investments to report on for 22/23.

Reserves will have to accumulate to a suitable level before investment is to be considered, or annually,
whichever is sooner.

MAT investment policy stipulates all decisions on will be joint Trust SLT and Trustees with due consideration
level of batances, long term outlook, consideration to environmental, social and ethical factors of any material
investment/decisions. If any investments are to be held, performance must be monitored against key targets and
included in this report. Currently no material investments.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trust has continued to embed systems and controfs in respect of finance and operational risks. The Board
has appointed external auditor, Marriott Gibbs Rees Wallis Ltd and internal auditor Hart Shaw to undertake a
review of financial practices and procedures. The Trust also employ the services of a number of external audits
and checks for non-financial risks. These services are mostly external experts/companies but also by peer-to
peer reviews. The extent of this process is included in the EMAT Internal Scrutiny Report which is reviewed and
updated annually by SLT and Trustees, the report includes the previous year's action and plan for current year.
All decisions are risk based and are linked into EMAT Risk Register and risk management process. Risk is a
standing item on Trustee agendas to ensure scheduled monitoring continues throughout the year.

The MAT Risk Register is considered annually, controls and high risks agreed. Risk is recurring item on the
Trustee agendas and also the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee agendas. The committee consider areas of
risk identified to include mitigations to minimise the likelihood and impact on the Trust. The committee report
their findings to Trustee full board. The Trust considers the following areas to be its principal risks over the next
year and have put in place a range of strategies for managing the risks: -

Trustees ensure that, to fulfil their legal obligation, they monitor and challenge the processes that are put in
place to mitigate risk, which includes responsibilities to ensure that the Trust's estate is safe, well maintained
and complies with regulations. This process is supported by external reviews and audits which are identified in
the EMAT Assurance document.

Current Financial Climate - Rising Costs/Inflation

The current rising costs (including pay) are continually reviewed, and the financial impact assessed. This is
monitored as part of the MAT monthly budget monitoring and reporting program. Budget figures and predictions
are revised with focus on accuracy. Budgets monitored for best value and possible savings/waste. Business
plans and scenarios developed to include potential savings to ensure financial sustainability.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Government Funding Reforms

The Trust produces 3 year budget plans based on future projected student numbers, known budget pressures
such as employee costs to include a regular review of staffing to ensure that pupilteacher ratios are affordable.
Government reforms and shifts in funding are sometimes difficult to forecast so remain a key monitoring area.
Current concerns are around the uncertainty of certain Government funding streams.

Controls - the same method as above is embedded in the budget monitoring process and used to monitor and
adjust predictions in order to increase forecast accuracy. Financial scenarios can then be developed to mitigate
the risk and action taken.

Falling pupil numbers
Birth rate numbers for future years are predicted. A major part of school funding is linked to pupils on roll so any
fall can have financial consequence. '

Controls - Funding streams are continually monitored and evaluated by Trust finance staff along with
Government agenda and predictions amended if any changes re anticipated. This leads to more accuracy in
predictions therefore giving more time for making budget adjustments and cash flow forecasts. Contingency is
taken into account when assessing required outturns. The same method as above is embedded in the budget
monitoring process and used to monitor and adjust predictions in order to increase forecast accuracy. Financial
scenarios can then be developed to mitigate the risk.

Cash flow and financial sustainability
Monthly monitoring procedures are in place to assess current and future outturns and cash flow predictions. The

monitoring supports the day to day work on cash flow and budget carried out by MAT finance staff and is an
essential factor to ensure a continued safe financial position. Trade creditors and debtors are within the monthly
monitoring processes.

Data security
External advice and support from the MAT ICT provider ADEPT to ensure the MAT is compliant with security

systems.

Measures are in place to mitigate risk of security threats and data breach. These arrangements are audited and
managed by the external ICT provider.

Business Continuity

The Trust maintain Business Continuity Plans, with regular testing of procedures such as emergency
evacuation. The Trust has in place a number of contracts to ensure that there is a consistency of approach
across all of its Academies and to ensure statutory compliance. This process links the EMAT internal Scrutiny
Report. Data is backed up securely offsite and retrievable. Planning around succession is included within staff
structures and work has been ongoing to increase staff knowledge and expertise to support any unforeseen

absence.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees’ Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Fundraising
The EMAT academies will fundraise under the provisions of the Charities (Protection and Social Investment) Act

2016, Section 13.

The funding of equipment and services from funds outside the academies’ revenue budgets is an important part
of school life. It is carried out on a voluntary basis by staff and volunteers via fundraising events for example;
non-uniform days, concerts. The Trust have not employed professional fundraisers.

EMAT will support fundraising initiatives as long as correct procedures are adhered to. All fundraising will be for
voluntary contributions.

EMAT fundraising must be a legitimate means of improving the academy’s ability to purchase goods, equipment
or services, which are not available within the capital or revenue budget. Public donations of cash, equipment, or
actively raising funds is seen as a positive way of supporting the academies.

The EMAT Trustees are responsible for ensuring that:

1. Correct fundraising procedures are in place, procedures are followed and monitored.

2. Expenditure is properly validated. '

3. All funds raised are properly accounted for and audited.

4. The money is expended in accordance with the objectives agreed with the fund raisers.

Fundraising activities will be recognised providing that they are generally within the strategic direction of the
Trust's plans and ethos. Fundraising must be approved in advance, by the Academy Head and the CEO and
COOI/CFO. The MAT does not use external fundraisers, therefore, must be notified of and approve prior to the
hiring of the external fundraiser. External bodies will be required to advise the Trust of their intentions and be
guided by the Trust. in the event of funds raised or donated, to the Trust, for purposes outside the Trust's plans
or ethos, the Trust may decline to accept the donation, but would encourage the donor/organiser to allow the
donation to be used for more appropriate purposes.

In the event 2 member of staff becoming aware of a body fund raising on behalf of an academy or the Trust,
he/she should notify the CEO so that the fund raising can be approved.

Fundraisers shall adhere to all policies and procedures adopted by the Academy’s Local Governing Body or by
the Trust. Donors have the right to obtain complete and timely information on how their funds are used.

Publicity and promotional activities are to be truthful and non-deceptive with a clear statement of use.

EMAT expects commitment to the highest standards of good practice to ensure that all fundraising activities are
transparent, legal and fair and to recognised standard.

Members of the public must not be subject to persistent, unreasonable intrusive fundraising approaches that
would put them under any undue pressure to donate.

Anyone having concerns or complaints regarding the school's fundraising schemes should discuss these initially
with the CEO who will report regularly to the Trustees.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Strategic Report

Plans for future periods

EMAT will continue to strive to offer the highest standard of educational opportunities for children and to provide
professional development for all staff.

The Trust will continue to embed policies and procedures in this period of growth of the MAT to ensure a sound
base for growth and sustainability.

The Trust will continue to monitor the current and future financial positions of the MAT against development
plans to ensure sustainability and best practice. Monitoring of actual performance in line with business plans will
be stringent to ensure plans are on track and attainable.

The sharing of resources and best practice has been embedded over the past year and the Trust and Trustees
will continue to develop this as the collaborative approach is key to MAT operations and success. Staff are
working together effectively and skills and knowledge growing, collaboration is effective and growing.

The MAT growth plan is reviewed annually by Trustees. The Board reflect and consider past growth and future
plans to ensure growth is still viable. Growth must be well managed and must enhance the current strengths of
the MAT. Previous growth has been a huge positive far the MAT and for the new academy and future growth
planned for 23/24 as trustees agreed that this is attainable and a positive and safe move.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Trustees' Report for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

Funds held as Custodian Trustee on behalf of others
The Trust and its academies do not act as custodian Trustees of any other charity.

Auditor
Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

« there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware; and

« the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Reappointment of auditor
The auditors Marriott Gibbs Rees Wallis Limited are deemed to be reappointed under section 487(2) of the
Companies Act 2006.

The trustees’ report, incorporating a Strategic Report, was approved by order of the members of the Board of
Trustees on 19 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

Ghartte Wnight

C Wright
" Trustee
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Governance statement

Scope of responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Empowering Minds Academy Trust
has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a system is designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Gavernment Handbook and
competency framework for governance.

The Governing Body has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to S Cairns, Trustee, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and
in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
Empowering Minds Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for
reporting to the Governing Body any material weaknesses or breakdowns in intermnal control.

Governance

The information on governance, included below, supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Governing Body has formally met 4 times during the year. Plus the
attendance of designated Trustees at the Finance, Audit and Risk committee at two meetings (one Committee
meeting has been deferred to Autumn Term 23.)

The meeting format for the financial year is three full board meetings plus a minimum of three Finance and Audit
Committee Meetings from which, the information is distributed to all Trustees for information. Trustees have
maintained effective oversight by receiving full reports and feedback from the Trustees Finance and Audit
Committee and interim written communications. MAT procedure is that finances are reviewed six times each
year as sub-committee reports are issued to the full board to ensure full reporting. In the case of a deferred
meeting the finance reports are shared monthly as routine.

The Finance and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees, its main purpose is to monitor
compliance and financial sustainability as per Government guidelines. To maintain oversight on internal and
external audit arrangements, outcomes and action taken to address any findings. To assess risk and to report
back and make recommendations to Trustee full board.

The Teaching and learning Commiittee was established in 22/23 in order to allow governance to take a more in
depth look at the provision, outcomes and targets. Please see summary below.

Committee remits are set out in, in detail, in the EMAT Schemes of Delegation and Committee Terms of
Reference which are included in the EMAT Governance Handbook.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Governing Body was as follows:

Meetings Outofa

Trustee attended possible
S Caims, CEQ 3 4
R Carney 3 4
E Fox 4 4
R Mellor 4 4
R Pegg, (resigned 13 October 2023) (resigned 13 October 2023) 2 4
M A Skelton 2 4
C Wright, Chair 2 4
0 4

K Kellett, (resigned 21 November 2023) (resigned 21 November 2023)
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

The Trustee structure was fully reviewed and restructured during 19/20 and 20/21 with the help of external NGA
advice. The new structure was implemented in September 21. The board had performed well and consists of a
high skill set. The review considered Trustee Board overall effectiveness to include membership, skill set, duties,
revisions to documents i.e., Scheme of Delegation, Terms of Reference, meeting frequency, agenda termly
content, clerking arrangements, sub-committees, full structure and the introduction of Academy Committees and
link Trustees. Trustees have reviewed the changes and can confirm that changes have been positive, are
effective and have enhanced ways of warking, communications, skills and compliance.

Future effectiveness will be reviewed annually.

Conflicts of interest

The MAT reviews conflicts of interest and related parties annually, the process requires all governance and staff
to complete the necessary declaration forms, these are then checked by a named members of staff and Register
of Interest produced, monitored and updated. Interests declared are presented to Trustees for
consideration/action. An awareness of any possible interests is communicated to SLT and other relevant leaders
in order to properly manage any conflicts.

There is a process to ensure that new staff/governance are included in this exercise.

Governance reviews
The Trust recently carried out the annual review of the MAT’s full governance. There is an annual review
program for future years.

A summary of review findings for the past year: -

+ Formation of an additional Committee to enable deeper focus on teaching and learning, further training for
Chairs, Clerks and Trustees, to also enhance the induction process and work on vision, The recommendations
have been implemented and a plan developed for this year. Work on visioning has been collaborative via a
visioning day with all MAT governance, clerks and key staff. A vision document has now been produced. A
Teaching and Learning Committee was created.

+ The review has been a very useful tool for improvement and has helped identify key priorities, impact has been
seen already with increased knowledge and collaboration and shared vision. Governance will be reviewed
annually by the board and EMAT SLT. The service of external NGA adviser is also purchased to assist with the
process.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust
Governance statement (continued)

Finance, Audit and Risk Committee

The Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. its remit id fully detailed in the EMAT
Governance Handbook which includes Terms of Reference. The Committee’s main purpose is to work within its
remit as per the Committee Terms of Reference, Scheme of delegation and as detailed in the DFE documents
Governance handbook and Academy Trust Handbook to: -

Assist with review of financial policy, Scheme of Delegation, regulations and procedures
To monitor compliance and controls to include internal/external audit reports and actions.

Financial detail for monitoring of budget, income and expenditure and other funding, make
decisions/recommendations to full board.

Consider and approve additional expenditure and virements within its remit.

Consider audit and internal scrutiny requirements, to link in with risk management and processes. To identify key
priorities and make recommendations.

The Committee has dealt with significant budget adjustments through the year relating to money saving
exercises due to the financial climate.

The Finance and Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the main Governing Body. The purpose of The Finance
and Audit Commiftee is a sub-committee of the Board of Trustees, its main purpose is to monitor compliance
and financial sustainability as per Government guidelines. To maintain oversight on internal and external audit
arrangements, outcomes and action taken to address any findings. To report back and make recommendations
to Trustee full board.

Trustee Finance and Audit Committee's remit is set out in detail, in the EMAT Schemes of Delegation and
Committee Terms of Reference.

Attendance at meetings during the year was as follows:

Meetings Out of a

Trustee attended possible
S Caimns, 1 2
R Pegg, (resigned 13 October 2023) 2 2
C Wright, 2 2
1 2

K Kellett, (resigned 21 November 2023)

Teaching and Learning Committee

The Teaching and Leaming Committee’s remit is to review, monitor and evaluate the curriculum offer and to
recommend for approval to the Trust Board the evaluation, improvement plan and targets for improvement. To
also develop and review policies identified within the policy review programme and in accordance with its
detegated powers. To ensure that the requirements of children with special needs are met, as laid out in the
Code of Practice.

To be responsible for monitoring and evaluating the effectiveness of leadership and management and the impact
of teaching and pupil progress as set out in the Committee's Terms of Reference.
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Governance statement (continued)

Review of value for money

As accounting officer the CEO has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider societal outcomes as well as estates, safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer
resources received.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where available. The Accounting Officer for the Academy Trust has
delivered improved value for money during the year by:

« Sharing resources across the MAT, including staff.
*» A collaborative approach to staff development using MAT resources for staff development and training.

» The central procurement of contracts to ensure value for money by negotiating new, more effective contracts
for the MAT. To include bulk purchasing for the MAT. By doing this the Trust has managed to achieve savings.

+ Reviewing all staff structures, to include leadership, to ensure efficiency and to also gain efficiency pfanning the
effective use of staff time by deploying resources to meet needs. Workflow assessments have been completed
to reduce any duplications and increase effectiveness and audit trails. The Trust continue to review its staffing
requirements.

« Business, teaching & learning and school effectiveness functions are developed refined, coordinated.
« Carrying out financial reviews to benchmark for a more cost effective and efficient budget.

- EMAT has put to effective and appropriate use, any funding provided to the MAT. In the year 22/23, the MAT
was awarded CIF funding for building improvement for priority works to include part roof refurbishment for poor
state roof at one academy. In addition, the additional DfE capital funding for energy has been put to good use to
fund poor classroom lighting, replace poor/old windows in key priority areas as highlighted by the MAT’s assets
management plan. Government additional funding for tutoring has been used across the MAT for additional
provision for targeted pupil support within the tutoring grant criteria.

Benchmarking data is used as a tool to monitor resources across the MAT and to make comparisons with other
similar sized MATS.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Empowering Minds Academy
Trust for the year ended 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial
statements. Outcome of internal control testing is presented to Trustees.

Hart Shaw were appointed as internal auditors for the year and have completed their audit and submitted their
report. This external auditing process will continue as it is an essential challenge and check to the running of the

MAT.

Page 23




Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Governance statement (continued)

Capacity to handie risk

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and
up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

This process is reviewed by the Board of Trustees as risk is an agenda item at each Trustee meeting, current
risks are assessed and reviewed and the process challenged and included in the minutes.

The risk and controi framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

« comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and penodlc financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;

+ regular reviews, by senior leaders and Trustees, of reports which indicate financial performance against the
forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
» clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;

+ clearly defined procedures to incorporate second checks and controls;

- delegation of authority and segregation of duties;

- identification and management of risks via several processes to include the standing agenda items for
schools, SLT, Trustees and Committees, for safeguarding, health and safety, risk, compliance, premises,
employees.

The Board of Trustees has decided:
+ to employ Hart Shaw LLP as internal auditor
+ to buy-in an internal audit service from Marriott Gibbs Rees Wallis Ltd.

The auditor's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks on the
academy trust's financial and other systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

« testing of payroli systems, with additional checks around recruitment compliance,
» testing of income systems;

On an annual, the auditor's review is presented to the board of trustees, initially via the Trustee Finance and
Audit Committee. The report will cover the operation of the systems of control and the discharge of the Board of
Trustees’ financial responsibilities. They will annually prepare an annual summary report to the committee
outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider
actions and assess year on year progress. The schedule of work will include any material control issues that
may arise and Trustees will act on the information provided.

All audit reports will be presented to Trustees and remain an item on the Finance, Audit and Risk Committee
Agendas to ensure all actions are completed.

The above audits were completed in the year stipulated above. SLT and Trustees are assured that the auditors
fulfilled their schedute of work and highlighted appropriate control issues.
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Governance statement (continued)

Review of effectiveness
As accounting officer, the trustee has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

« the work of the internal auditor; Hart Shaw LLP

- the financial management and governance self-assessment process or the school resource management
self-assessment tool;

+ the work of the executive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework.

+ the work of the external auditor; Marriott Gibbs Rees Wallis Ltd

The Accounting Officer and Trustees will review the effectiveness of the internal self-assessments. This will be
an annual Trustee agenda item. Weaknesses will be identified and addressed.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the

" system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Governing Body on 18 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

S Cairns
Accounting officer
Trustee

C Wright
Trustee
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Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance

As accounting officer of Empowering Minds Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the
academy trust Governing Body and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of ali funding, including for estates safety and
management, under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for
Education. As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust
Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that | and the academy trust Governing Body are able to identify any material irregular or improper use

of funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022,

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Goveming

Body and ESFA.

3

S Cairns, Trustee
Accounting officer

19 December 2023
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Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are

required to:
- select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

+ observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022
to 2023,

+ make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

« state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the

purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by arder of the members of the Board on 19 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

C Wright
Trustee
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Empowering Minds Academy Trust (the 'Academy’) for the year
ended 31 August 2023, which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, Balance Sheet, Statement of Cash
Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
Financial Reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic
of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), Accounting and Reparting by Charities;
Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to Charities (Charities SORP 2019) and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

« give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and Academies Accounts Direction 2022
to 2023.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the original financial statements were authorised
for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information (covers the Reference and administrative details, the Trustees' Report and Strategic
Report and the Governance statement)

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Empowering Minds Academy Trust (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. if, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

« the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Trustees' Report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

» the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
« certain disclosures of Trustees remuneration specified by law are not made; or
« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees' Responsibilities [set out on page 27], the Trustees are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsibie for assessing the Academy's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting uniess the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor Responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Empowering Minds Academy Trust (continued)

Irreguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures
in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud.

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and its industry, we identified that the principal risks of
non-compliance with laws and regulations related to the funding agreement with the Department of Education,
UK tax legislation, pensions legislation, employment regulation and health and safety regulation, anti-bribery,
corruption and fraud, money laundering, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a
material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct
impact on the preparation of the financial statements, such as the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023.

We evaluated the Trustees' and management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the
financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were
related to posting manual journal entries to manipulate financial performance, management bias through
judgements and assumptions in significant accounting estimates and significant one-off or unusual transactions.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to those identified risks, including non-compliance with laws
and regulations (irregularities) and fraud that are material to the financial statements. Our audit procedures
inciuded but were not limited to:

« Discussing with the Trustees and management their policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws
and regulations

» Communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team and remaining alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout our audit;

+ Enquiring with management and trustees conceming any actual or potential litigation or claims;
» Inspecting correspondence with regulators and legal advisors;
* Reviewing minutes of trustees meetings; and

+ Considering the risk of acts by the company which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including
fraud.

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to:

« Making enquiries of the Trustees and management on whether they had knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud;

+ Gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks refated to fraud;

» Discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud;

+ Addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by reviewing transactions around the
end of the reporting period and by testing the appropriateness of journals and other adjustments;

« Performing analytical procedures to identify unexpected changes or movements to account balances which
may be indicative fraud;

+ Assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of any potential bias;
and

+ Evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal
course of business.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements to the Members of
Empowering Minds Academy Trust (continued)

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with management. Our audit procedures were
designed to respond to risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, recognising that the risk of not
detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, misrepresentations, forgery, intentional

omissions, collusion, or the override of internal controls.

The further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in
the financial statements, the tess likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's Members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's Members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
Members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

A fidt=

Alan Pickstone FCCA (Seniar Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Marriott Gibbs Rees Wallis Limited
Chartered Certified Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Unit 4, Broadfield Court
Sheffield
S8 OXF

Date:.20.... Necomber 2033
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Empowering
Minds Academy Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 31 August 2021 and further to the requirements of
the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed
and income received by Empowering Minds Academy Trust during the period 1 September 2022 to 31 August
2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Empowering Minds Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of
our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we may state to Empowering Minds Academy
Trust and the ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Empowering Minds
Academy Trust and the ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Governing Body's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of the Governing Body's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education dated 31 May 2017 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1
September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all materiaf respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year from 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and
Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as
defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on

regularity.
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes:

+ The assessment and evaluation of relevant control procedures adopted by the Academy Trust

» Assessing the risk of material irregularity

- Undertaking limited testing of income and expenditure, including identifying and testing funding agreements
in place

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in ail material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income received during the year from 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities
which govern them.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Empowering
Minds Academy Trust and the Education and Skitls Funding Agency (continued)

Mopecsth Clbs Aoy Wellts Liited

Marriott Gibbs Rees Wallis Limited
Chartered Certified Accountants and Reporting Accountant

Unit 4, Broadfield Court
Sheffield
S8 OXF

Date:. 2.G... Decosber 20273
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

~ Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

(inciuding Income and Expenditure Account)

Note
income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 2
Other trading activities 4
Investments 5
Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy trust's
educational operations 3
Total

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 6

Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations 7

Total
Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains and losses

Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes 27

Net movement in funds/(deficit)
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/(deficit) brought forward at
1 September 2022

Total funds/(deficity carried forward at
31 August 2023

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2023/22
Funds Funds Funds Totaf
£ £ £ £

- 83,148 267,985 351,133
36,949 277,429 - 314,378
- 17,420 - 17,420

- 8,905,499 - 8,905,499
36,949 8,283,496 267,985 9,588,430
- 64,452 - 64,452

- 8,779,893 488,766 9,268,659

- 8,844 345 488,766 9,333,111
36,949 439,151 (220,781) 255,319
- (102,122) 102,122 -

- 768,000 - 768,000
36,949 1,105,029 (118,659) 1,023,319
45,267 (1,200,157) 32,056,383 30,901,493
82,216 (95,128) 31,937,724 31,924,812




Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Statement of Financial Activities for the Year Ended 31 August 2022

(including Income and Expenditure Account)

fncome and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Other trading activities
Investments

Charitable activities:

Funding for the Academy trust's
educational operations

Total

Expenditure on:
Raising funds

Charitable activities:
Academy trust educational operations

Total
Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds

Other recognised gains and losses

Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes

Net movement in funds
Reconciliation of funds

Total funds/(deficit) brought forward at
1 September 2021

Total funds/(deficit) carried forward at
31 August 2022

Note

H

27

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset 2022/21
Funds Funds Funds Total
£ £ £ £
54 64,648 911,047 975,749
16,533 285,540 - 302,073
- 766 - 766
- 8,415,817 - 8,415,817
16,587 8,766,771 911,047 9,694,405
- 35,036 - 35,036
- 9,201,479 432,957 9,634,436
- 9,236,515 432,957 9,669,472
16,587 (469,744) 478,090 24,933
- (32,400) 32,400 -
- 5,148,000 - 5,148,000
16,587 4,645,856 510,490 5,172,933
28,680 {5,846,013) 31,545,893 25,728,560
45 267 (1,200,157) 32,056,383 30,901,493
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

{Registration number: 10668193 )
Balance Sheet as at 31 August 2023

Fixed assets
Tangible assets

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year
Net assets excluding pension liability

Defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Funds of the Academy:

Restricted funds
Restricted general fund
Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Unrestricted funds
Unrestricted general fund

Total funds

Note

12

13

15

27

16
16
16

16

2023 2022
£ £
31,942,052 31,652,071
387,214 858,111
2,178,364 1,506,556
2,565,578 2,364,667
(1,040,044) (817.,859)
1,525,534 1,546,808
33,467,586 33,198,879
(21,774) (29,386)
33,445,812 33,169,493
(1,521,000)  (2,268,000)
31,924,812 30,901,493
1,425,872 1,067,843
31,837,724 32,056,383
(1,521,000)  (2,268,000)
31,842,596 30,856,226
82,216 45,267
31,924,812 30,901,493

The financial statements on pages 34 to 61 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 19

December 2023 and signed on their behalf by:

4‘:“5 O~

S Cairns
Trustee
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2023

2023 2022
Note £ £

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities 20 587,293 181,160
Cash transferred on conversion to an academy trust - -
Cash flows from investing activities 22 92,127 {132,997)
Cash flows from financing activities 21 (7,612) (10,784)
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year 671,808 37,379
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 September 1,506,556 1,469,177
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 23 2,178,364 1,506,556
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023

1 Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in
the UK and Republic of lreland (FRS 102), the Accounfing and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from
the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the academy trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material
uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entittement to the funds, the receipt is

probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions, there is not
unconditional entiiement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred
income untii the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received,

the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are spent on
capital projects in line with the terms and conditions of the grant. Capital grants are recognised when there is
entitiement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the
receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Page 38




Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donafed goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale jess the expected
costs of sale, If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other
trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’ and
the proceeds are recognised as ‘income from other trading: activities’. Where it is impractical to fair value the
items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold.
This income is recognised within 'income from other trading activities'.

Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred
assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards
of ownership pass to the academy trust. An equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion
within donations and capital grant income to the net assets received.

Donated fixed assets

Where the donated good is a fixed asset, it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this
reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from
donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over
the useful economic life in accordance with the academy trust's accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic. benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up
of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct
costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more
than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time
spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs
relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets
Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected
useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of
the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities
and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the
restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been
acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at
rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, per the
table below. Where an asset comprises of two or more components which have substantially different useful
lives, each component is depreciated separately over its useful economic life.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and buildings.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Statement of Financial Activities.

Asset class Depreciation method and rate
Leasehold land and buildings Straight line over 125 years
Building improvements ' Straight line over 30 years
Plant and machinery 10% straight line

Furniture and equipment 20% straight line

Motor vehicles 25% straight line

Computer equipment 33.33% straight line

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past
event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect
of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted
at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

Page 40




Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financial Instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in notes 14 and 15. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial
instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash
settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another
financial instrument.

Taxation
The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010

and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received
within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation
of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable
purposes.

Pension benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme ('TPS’)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme ('LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes. The TPS is an
unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working lives
with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and
future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial
valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no
underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution
scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy
trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities
are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to
the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The
actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to net income/{expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the
net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the
benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on
the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

1 Accounting policies {(continued)

Fund accounting
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources, which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders, where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seidom equal the related actual resuits. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit fiability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 27, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a rolf forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2019 has been
used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the

pension liability.

2 Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Restricted fixed asset 2022/23 2020/21
funds funds Total Total

£ £ £ £
Educational trips and visits 81,648 - 81,648 64,648
Capital grants - 268,215 268,215 800,506
Other donations 1,500 - 1,500 54
Donated fixed assets - (230) (230) 10,541

83,148 267,985 351,133 975,749
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

3 Funding for the Academy Trust's educational operations

Educational operations

DfE/IESFA revenue grants
General Annual Grant (GAG)
Pupil Premium

Teachers pay grant
Teachers pension grant
UIFSM

Other DFE/ESFA grants
Supplementary grant

Other government
grants

Local authority grants

Total grants

4 Other trading activities

Hire of facilities

Catering income

Recharges and reimbursements
Other sales

Income from other charitable activities

5 Investment income

Short term deposits

Restricted
General 2023/22 2022/21
Funds Total Total
£ £ £
6,614,153 6,614,153 6,562,896
510,942 510,942 505,757
4,663 4,663 8,350
13,176 13,176 23,595
162,506 162,506 193,374
458,935 458,935 292,169
193,958 193,958 -
7,958,333 7,958,333 7.586,141
947,166 947,166 829,676
8,905,499 8,905,499 8,415,817
Unrestricted Restricted 2022/23 2020/21
funds funds Totai Total

£ £ £ £
4,823 - 4,823 7,315
- 132,189 132,189 152,396
- 55,328 55,328 35,616
32,126 88,112 120,238 101,896
- 1,800 1,800 4,850
36,949 277,429 314,378 302,073

Restricted 2022/23 2020/21
funds Total Total

£ £ £

17,420 17.420 766
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

6 Expenditure

Non Pay Expenditure

2023/22 2022/21
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure on raising
funds
Direct costs 32,237 - 32,215 64,452 35,036
Academy's educational
operations
Direct costs 5,768,725 488,766 516,099 6,773,590 6,727,306
Allocated support costs 1,051,212 687,999 755,858 2,495,069 2,907,130
6,852,174 1,176,765 1,304,172 9,333,111 9,669,472
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:
2023 2022
£ £
Operating lease rentals 46,003 61,962
Depreciation 488,766 432,958
Fees payable to auditor - audit 12,500 12,200
Other audit services 2,395 2375
Other non audit services 8,080 8,175
7 Charitable activities
2022123 2020/21
£ £
Direct costs - educational operations 6,773,590 6,727,306
Support costs - educational aperations 2,495,069 2,807,130
9,268,659 9,634,436
Educational 2022/23 2020/21
operations Total Total
£ £ £
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 1,051,212 1.0561,212 1,436,659
Technology costs 36,466 36,466 34,876
Premises costs 687,999 687,999 574,178
Other support costs 683,498 683,498 836,402
Governance costs 35,894 35,894 26,015
2,495,069 2,495,069 2,907,130

Total support costs
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

8 Staff
Staff costs
2023 2022
£ £
Staff costs during the year were:
Woages and salaries 4,941,300 4,983,228
Social security costs i 443,690 445,634
Pension costs 1,242,202 1,752,138
6,627,192 7,181,000
Supply staff costs 218,982 62,268
Staff restructuring costs - 27,294
6,846,174 7,270,562
2023122 2022/21
£ £
Staff restructuring costs comprise:
Redundancy payments - 27,294
Severance payments - -
Other restructuring costs - .
' - 27,294
Staff numbers
The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:
2023/22 2022/21
No No
Teachers 69 74
Administration and support 140 156
Management 8 8
' 217 238
Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose emoluments (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:
2023 2022
No No
£60,001 - £70,000 3 1
£70,001 - £80,000 3 4
£80,001 - £90,000 1 -

£90,001 - £100,000
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Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

8 Staff (continued)

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team
as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the
academy trust was £675,402 (2022: £722,944).

9 Central services

The academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:
+ Human Resources

» Financial services

+ Legal services

» Educational support services

« Qthers as arising

The academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:

6% contribution to the trust per Academy, based on 2022/23 income from the General Annual Grant for all
schools.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2023/22 2022/21
£ £
Southfield Primary 67.046 65,960
Tranmoor Primary 95,708 99,101
Bessacarr Primary 107,222 101,825
Highwoods Primary 59,272 57,102
Hawthom Primary . 67,602 63,970
396,850 387,958

10 Related party transactions - trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from employment with the
academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in
respect of their role as trustees. The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

S Cairns (Chief Executive Officer):

Remuneration: £60,000 - £65,000 (2022 - £95,000 - £100,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £10,000 - £15,000 (2022 - £20,000 - £25,000)

P Rust ():

Remuneration: £Nil (2022 - £15,000 - £20,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £Nif (2022 - £Nil)

Page 46




Empowering Minds Academy Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 August 2023 (continued)

10 Related party transactions - trustees’ remuneration and expenses (continued)
There were no reimbursements to trustees in respect of expenses in their capacity as trustees.
Other related party transactions involving the trustees are set out in note 26.

11 Trustees' and officers’ insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme.

12 Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold Fumiture Assets

land and and Computer under Motor  Plant and

buildings equipment equipment construction vehicles machinery Total

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1 September
2022 32,805,380 204,400 190,094 52,267 2,000 145,309 33,399,450
Additions 178,318 2,191 291,890 300,397 - 7.209 780,005
Disposals - - (1,258) - - - (1.258)
Transfers 52,267 - - (52,267) - - -

At 31 August 2023 33,035,965 206,591 480,726 300,397 2,000 152,518 34,178,197

Depreciation
At 1 September

2022 1,340,377 189,505 139,525 - 2,000 75,972 1,747,379
Charge for the year 377,574 6,668 89,813 - - 14,711 488,766
At 31 August 2023 1,717,951 196,173 229,338 - 2,000 90,683 2,236,145
Net book value

At 31 August 2023 31,318,014 10,418 251,388 300,397 - 61,835 31,942,052
At 31 August 2022 31,465,003 14,895 50,568 52,267 - 69,337 31,652,071
13 Debtors
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13 Debtors (continued)

Trade debtors

VAT recoverable

Other debtors

Prepayments

Accrued grant and other income
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2023 2022

£ £

3,143 1,010
57,104 28,129
1,416 17,182
140,442 137,426
185,109 674,364
387,214 858,111
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14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2023 2022

£ £

Trade creditors 314,969 167,420
Other taxation and social security 80,194 94,848
Other creditors 70,091 7,609
Accruals 286,791 221,116
Deferred income 141,722 196,852
Pension scheme creditor 136,277 130,014
1,040,044 817,859

Loans of £7,612 from DfE / Salix Finance Limited are included within other creditors and are provided on the
following terms: Repayable over 8 years through the standard DfE monthly settlement process. This is an
unsecured interest free loan (2022 : £7,612). :

2023 2022
£ £

Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2022 196,852 156,535
Resources deferred in the period 141,722 196,852
Amounts released from previous periods (196,852) {156,535)
Deferred income at 31 August 2023 141,722 196,852

Deferred income comprises universal free school meals, devolved formula capital and other income relating to
the 2023/24 academic year.

15 Creditors: amounts falling due in greater than one year

2023 2022
£ £
Other creditors 21,774 29,386

Loans of £21,774 from DfE / Salix Finance Limited are included within other creditors and are provided on the
following terms: Repayable over 8 years through the standard DfE monthly settlement process. This is an
unsecured interest free loan. (2022 : £29,386).

Included in other creditors are amounts repayable over five years amounting to £2,126 (2022 - £6,567).
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16 Funds

Restricted funds

Restricted general funds
General fund

Non government funding
Pupil premium

UIFSM

Other government funding

Restricted fixed asset funds

Assets transferred on
conversion

Capital expenditure from
GAG

Inherited funds

DfE Group capitat grants
Donated assets
Connect the Classroom

Pension reserve funds
Pension fund

Total restricted funds
Unrestricted general funds
General funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total endowment funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September Incoming Resources losses and 31 August
2022 resources expended transfers 2023

£ £ £ £ £
1,051,294 6,992,150 (6,541,607) (102,122) 1,399,715

- 947,166 (947,166) - -

- 510,943 (510,943) - -

- 162,505 (162,505) - -

16,549 670,732 (661,124) - 26,157
27,544,441 - (246,949) - 27,297,492
95,142 - (23.496) 45,768 117,414
13,190 - - (12,998) 192
4,383,987 705 (148,720) 69,122 4,305,094
19,623 - (11.527) - 8,096

- 267,280 (58,074) 230 209,436
{2,268,000) - {(21,000) 768,000 {1,521,000)
30,856,226 9,551,481 (8,333,111) 768,000 31,842,596
45,267 36,949 - - 82,216
45,267 36,949 - - 82,216
30,901,493 9,588,430 (9.333,111) 768,000 31,924,812
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16 Funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restricted funds

Restricted general funds
General fund

Pupil premium

UIFSM

Other government funding

Rastricted fixed asset funds

Assets transferred on
conversion

Capital expenditure from
GAG

Inherited funds
DfE Group capital grants
Donated assets

Pension reserve funds
Pension fund

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted general funds
General funds

Total unrestricted funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Gains, Balance at
September Incoming Resources fosses and 31 August
2021 resources expended transfers 2022
£ £ £ £ £

1,019,987 6,913,849 {6,850,142) (32,400) 1,051,294

- 505,757 (505,757) - -

- 193,375 (193,375) - -

- 1,153,790 (1,137,241) - 16,549
27,818,126 - (273,685) - 27,544 441
88,392 - (14,287) 21,037 95,142
13,190 - - - 13,190
3,600,785 906,146 (134,307) 11,363 4,383,987
25,400 4,901 (10,678) - 19,623
(6,866,000) - (550,000) 5,325,000 (2,091,000)
25,699,880 9,677,818 (9,669,472) 5,325,000 31,033,226
28,680 16,587 - - 45,267
28,680 16,587 - - 45,267
25,728,560 9,694,405 (9.669,472) 5,325,000 31,078,493
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16 Funds (continued)

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Restricted general fu

General funds - The academy trust's principal funding stream received from the ESFA and other sources. This
must be used to fund the normal running costs of the Academy for the benefit of existing students.

Pupil premium — DfE funding to address the current underlying inequalities between children eligible for free
school meals and their wealthier peers by ensuring that funding to tackle the disadvantaged reaches the pupils

who need it most.

Universal infant free school meals - ESFA/DfE funding in relation to the provision of free school meals to
primary school students.

Catch-up premium - a one-off universal catch-up premium for the 2020/21 academic year to support children
and young people to catch up lost time after school closure.

Other government funds — This includes early years funding and additional funding for special educational
needs, along with other DfE/iocal government grants.

Non-government funds — Other funds granted from non-government bodies.

Pension fund — The deficit of the Local Government pension scheme has been recognised against restricted
funds in order to match it against GAG as recommended by the ESFA Accounts Direction.

Restricted fixed asset funds

Assets transferred on conversion — Assets donated to the academy trust from local authority, upon
conversion.

Inherited funds — Cash balances inherited from local authority upon conversion, in relation to capital funds.

Capital expenditure from GAG — Gross transfers from the general fund to the restricted fixed asset fund,
representing general funds invested in improving the schools facilities and equipment.

DfE Group capital grants — funding provided to be spent on capital items.
Donated assets - laptops donated to help disadvantaged children and young people to learn at home.

ic d
Funds available to the trustees to apply for the general purposes of the academy trust.
Transfers

Transfers were made during the period under review from general funds to restricted fixed assets funds to
support the costs associated with fixed asset expenditure on CIF projects and general fixed asset investment.

Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:
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16 Funds (continued)

Southfield Primary
Tranmoar Primary
Bessacarr Primary
Highwoods Primary
Hawthorn Primary
Central services

Academy Trust

Teaching
and
Educationai Other Other Costs
Support Support Educational  (excluding Total
Staff Costs Staff Costs Supplies Depreciation) 2023
£ £ £ B £
870,223 190,732 37,073 313,724 1,411,752
1,473,931 269,733 51,307 439,545 2,234,516
1,482,751 192,207 52,696 445129 2,172,783
763,635 84,741 26,863 238,214 1,113,453
998,608 194,948 51,466 296,267 1,541,289
195,738 134,928 3,000 36,886 370,552
5,784,886 1,067,289 222,405 1,769,765 8,844,345

Teaching and Educational Support Staff Costs include the staffing of the breakfast and after school clubs shown
within the Expenditure on Raising Funds category per note 6.

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Southfield Primary
Tranmoor Primary
Bessacarr Primary
Highwoods Primary
Hawthorn Primary
Central services

Academy Trust

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs

support support Educational (excluding Total
staff costs staff costs supplies depreciation) 2022
£ £ £ £
935,276 239,473 25,203 280,695 1,480,647
1,480,817 314,782 33,777 367,919 2,197,295
1,502,057 269,853 50,477 488,878 2,311,265
781,072 160,482 33,444 305,309 1,280,307
958,239 271,227 34,779 297,092 1,561,337
176,443 180,844 8,105 40,272 405,664
5,833,904 1,436,661 185,785 1,780,165 9,236,515

Totat funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 were allocated as follows:
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16 Funds (continued)

Southfield Primary
Tranmoor Primary
Bessacarr Primary
Highwoods Primary
Hawthom Primary
Central services

Total before fixed assets and pension reserve
Restricted fixed asset fund
Pension reserve

Total
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2023 2022

£ £

214,362 137,032
421,192 327,485
239,573 142,796
269,714 130,561
262,291 306,162
100,956 63,074
1,508,088 1,113,110
31,837,724 32,056,383
(1,521,000) (2,268,000)
31,924,812 30,801,493
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17 Analysis of net assets between funds

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are represented by:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Creditors over 1 year

Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Comparative information in respect of the preceding pericd is as follows:

Tangible fixed assets
Current assets

Current liabilities
Creditors over 1 year
Pension scheme liability

Total net assets

Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £
- - 31,942,052 31,942,052
82,216 2,312,429 170,935 2,565,580
- (886,557) (153,489) (1,040,046)
- - (21,774) (21,774)
- (1,521,000) - (1,521,000)
82,216 (95,128) 31,937,724 31,924,812
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£ £ £ £
- - 31,652,071 31,652,071
45,267 1,808,516 510,884 2,364,667
- (740,673) (77,186) (817,859)
- - (29,386) (29,386)
- (2,268,000) - (2,268,000)
45,267 (1,200,157) 32,056,383 30,901,483
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18 Long-term commitments, including operating leases

Operating leases

At 31 August 2023 the total of the Academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

operating leases was:

2023 2022
£ £
Amounts due within one year 19,819 19,145
Amounts due between one and five years 15,634 6,350
35,453 25,495
19 Capital commitments
2023 2022
' £ £
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements - 464,977
20 Reconciliation of net income to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
2022/23 2021/22
£ £
Net income 255,319 24,933
Depreciation 488,766 432,958
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (268,215) (911,047)
Interest receivable (17,420) (766)
Defined benefit pension scheme costs less contributions payable {65,000) 429,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 86,000 121,000
Increase in debtors (24,450) (25,848)
Increase in creditors 132,293 110,930
Net cash provided by Operating Activities 587,293 181,160
21 Cash flows from financing activities
2022/23 2021/22
£ £
Repayments of borrowing (7,612) (10,784)
Net cash used in financing activities (7,612) (10,784)
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22 Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangibie fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities

23 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at bank

Total cash and cash equivalents

24 Analysis of changes in net debt

Cash
Loans falling due within one year
Loans falling due after more than one year

Total

25 Member liability

2022/23 2021/22
£ £
17.420 766
(690,113) (481,993)
1,258 -
763,562 348,230
92,127 (132,997)
2023 2022
£ £
2,178,364 1,506,556
2,178,364 1,506,556
At1
September At 31
2022 Cash flows August 2023
£ £ £
1,506,556 671,808 2,178,364
(7.612) - (7.612)
(29.386) 7,612 (21,774)
{36,998) 7,612 (29,386)
679,420 2,148,978

1,469,558

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a

member.
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26 Related pérty transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of Trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees
have an interest. There were no related party transactions during the year.

27 Pension and similar obligations

The academy trusts employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff, which is managed by . Both are muiti-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March
2019.

Contributions amounting to £136,277 (2022 - £130,014) were payable to the schemes at 31 August and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for teachers in academies. All teachers
have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enroiment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was
published by the Department for Education on § March 2019.

The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:
+ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

. » total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
the effective date of £218,100 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million giving a notional past service deficit of
£22.000 million

+ the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notionat investment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% above the rate of CPI. Assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of
earnings. The rate of real earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed
nominal rate of return including eamings growth is 4.45%.

The latest actuarial TPS valuation results, as at 31 March 2020, were released in October 2023. The revised
employer contribution rate, arising from this valuation, is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.
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27 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £678,630 (2022: £675,083).
A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded muilti-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy .
trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

Local government pension schemes

The LGPS is a funded defined-benefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £634,000 (2022 - £640,000), of which
employer's contributions totalled £515,000 (2022 - £523,000) and employees' contributions totalled £119,000
{2022 - £117,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 25.9% per cent for employets and variable
per cent for employees. The scheme is managed by South Yorkshire Pension Scheme.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
an academy trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department
for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

Principal actuarial assumptions

2023 2022

% %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.60 4.10
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 3.00 3.10
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 5.20 4.30
3.00 3.10

Inflation assumptions (CP1)

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in the mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

2023 2022
Retiring today
Males retiring today 20.60 22.60
Females retiring today 23.60 25.40

Retiring in 20 years
Males retiring in 20 years 21.40 2410
Females retiring in 20 years 25.00 27.30
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27 Pension and similar obligations {(continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Discount rate +0.1%

Mortality assumption — 1 year increase
CPlrate +0.1%

Pay Growth +0.1%

The academy's share of the assets in the scheme were:

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was (£263,000) (2022 - (£84,000)).
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2023 2022

£ £
(168,000) (175,000)
289,000 292,000
153,000 141,000
20,000 32,000
2023 2022

£ £
4,011,000 3,627,000
1,221,000 1,037,000
523,000 466,000
58,000 52,000
5,813,000 5,182,000
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27 Pension and similar obligations (continued)

Amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost {net of employee contributions)
Interest income
Interest cost

Total amount recognized in the SOFA

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At start of period
Current service cost
interest cost

Employee contributions
Actuarial (gain)/loss
Benefits paid

At 31 August

Changes in the fair value of academy's share of scheme assets:

At start of period
Interest income
Actuarial gain/(loss)
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid

At 31 August

2023122 2022/21
£ £
438,000 952,000
(232,000) (84,000)
318,000 205,000
524,000 1,073,000
2023122 2022/21
£ £
7,273.000 11,550,000
438,000 952,000
318,000 205,000
119,000 117,000
(854,000)  (5,493,000)
(70,000) (58,000)
7,224,000 7,273,000
2023/22 2022/24
£ £
5,182,000 4,684,000
232,000 84,000
(165,000) (168,000)
515,000 523,000
119,000 117,000
(70,000) (58,000)
5,813,000 5,182,000

Pension assets amounting to £110,000 (2022 - £177,000) have not been accounted for in the financial

statements as they do not meet the recognition criteria under FRS 102.
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